
CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

JUNE 22, 2020 
AGENDA 

 
 
CHAIR           BOARD MEMBERS   
STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL 
        MICHAEL CHRISTENSON 
COUNCIL LIAISON     DEAN KUITUNEN 
DOUG HAMMERSENG     GRETCHEN BARRETT  
  
 
 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance: 7:00 p.m.  
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Approval of Minutes from May 21, 2020, Regular Meeting 

 
4. Citizen’s Forum 

 
5. Public Hearing 

a. Conditional Use Permit at 11000 Crow Hassan Park Road 
b. Conditional Use Permit at 11652 Crow Hassan Park Road 
c. Variance at 10111 Beebe Lake Road 
d. Variance at 775 Kadler Avenue NE 
 

6. Unfinished Business 
 
7. New Business 

a. Discussion on a Solar Energy Ordinance 
 

8. Reports and Announcements 
a. Planning Commission Reports 
b. Liaison Report 
c. Staff Reports 

 
9. Adjournment 

 
 



CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MAY 21, 2020 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 

Call to Order 
Stan Kolasa called the May 21, 2020, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:01 pm via Zoom.  
Members present via Zoom were Stan Kolasa, Jim Schendel, Dean Kuitunen, Mike Christenson and 
Gretchen Barrett (arrived at 7:04 pm).  Also present via Zoom City Planner Cindy Nash, Council Liaison 
Doug Hammerseng (arrived at 7:05 pm) and Administrative Assistant Amy Biren.  Guest present via Zoom:  
Kevin Luedemann. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
MOTION by Schendel to approve the agenda, seconded by Kuitunen.   
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Approval of Minutes from the April 27, 2020, Regular Meeting 
MOTION by Schendel to approve the April 27, 2020, minutes, seconded by Kuitunen.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum 
 None 
 
Public Hearing 
 Conditional Use Permit at 9054 10th Street SE 
 
Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting at 7:04 pm and opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Nash reviewed the request for a conditional use permit for an accessory building larger than the square 
footage of the home at 9054 10th Street SE.  She reminded the Board that they have seen requests like this 
in the past, however, usually the conditional use permit is granted prior to the construction of the accessory 
building.  The conditions include pulling a building permit and obtaining a certificate of occupancy, 
compliance with the Wright County Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) regarding wetland 
impacts to the satisfaction of the SWCD staff, and that the property remain in substantial compliance with 
all performance standards contained within the City Zoning Ordinance and City Code. 
 
Nash stated that there was an impact on a wetland and that the applicant was working with Wright County 
SWCD. 
 
Christenson asked how far from the road was the accessory building located.  Nash replied that it was quite 
a distance away and approximated it to be 1,000 feet.  Christenson then asked why it was constructed 
without a permit.  Nash said there had been miscommunication and that the conditional use permit would 
rectify that. 
 
Schendel asked whether or not the building had been inspected.  Nash said that the condition of obtaining 
a building permit would guarantee that the building was inspected and finaled (certificate of occupancy). 
 
Barrett said otherwise it does meet the requirements.  Nash confirmed this saying that there is nothing 
unique about it and the only thing is the size of the building being larger than the home. 
 
Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission at 7:10 pm. 
 



MOTION by Kuitunen to send the conditional use permit at 9054 10th Street SE forward to Council for 
approval with the three conditions listed in the Planner’s memo, seconded by Schendel. 
Motion carried unanimously by roll-call vote. 
 
Unfinished Business 
 None 
 
New Business 
 None 
 
Reports and Announcements 
 Christenson asked for an update on 15th Street and the Mahler Pit.  Nash said that Fehn Companies 
have begun constructing the berm and is watering to keep the dust down.  The reconstruction plans for 15th 
Street are expected sometime this week.  Those plans will need to be reviewed by both Hanover and St. 
Michael as it is a shared road.  Residents have expressed concerns about the amount of hauling traffic on 
River Road and 5th Street so Council talked about it at Tuesday’s meeting and will be rerouting the haul 
traffic back to 15th Street.  There is some patching that needs to be done before this happens and Public 
Works will be working on that next week.  Christenson asked whether or not 15th Street would be closed 
during construction.  Nash replied yes, and that the haul traffic would go back to River Road for the week 
or two it takes to complete the reconstruction.  Hammerseng said that Council thought it best to move the 
haul traffic back to 15th Street.  Nash said that it appears there may have been an increase in haul traffic due 
to Covid 19 and the ability to move up road projects since traffic is less.  She went on to say that Fehn does 
need to do a quarterly report showing the hauling records and tracking volume. 
 Kuitunen asked for an update on the River Town Villas.  Nash said that last fall they applied for a 
grading permit and that is finishing up now.  They will also be putting in retaining walls this week.  Council 
approved the developer’s agreement at Tuesday night’s meeting and the final plat is expected to be recorded 
in July. 
 Kuitunen also asked about the status of the Duininck Pit.  Nash said that Josh Pomerleau, JP Brooks, 
had submitted a new concept plan right before the State Emergency and that is on the Project Page of the 
City’s website.  Since then, Pomerleau has withdrawn the concept plan due to the uncertainty associated 
with Covid 19. 
 Barrett asked about the status of Mercantile Pass.  Nash said that someone is interested in buying 
part of the commercial part, but that they have not submitted anything yet.  Barrett asked whether it was 
the river side or the other side.  Nash said that it was the south side of the project, not the river side. 
 Hammerseng said that Council is looking at going back to in-person meetings starting June 2nd. 
 Nash said that for next month’s Planning Commission meeting, there are at least four public 
hearings that will need to be held for conditional use permits and variances, so that will exceed the current 
requirement of no more than 10 people present.  If the Governor does not increase the amount of people at 
a gathering, expect that the June meeting will be via Zoom. 
 

Adjournment 
MOTION by Schendel to adjourn, seconded by Christenson.   
Motion carried unanimously by roll-call vote.   
Meeting adjourned at 7:27 pm. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Amy L. Biren 
Administrative Assistant 
 



   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 

Memorandum 
Meeting Date: June 17, 2020 

To:   Planning Commission 

From:    Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE:  Conditional Use Permit for an Accessory Building– 
11000 Crow Hassan Park Road 

Overview of Request  

The subject property is currently zoned Agriculture.  The property is located at 11000 Crow 
Hassan Park Road. 

The application is included in your packets and contains their proposed request. 

Evaluation of Request 

The floor area of the principal structure is approximately 1450 square feet based on the real 
estate records.  The building area of the proposed new accessory building is 912 square feet.  
The zoning ordinance allows for an accessory building in excess of the floor area of the 
principal building if a Conditional Use Permit is obtained.  There are also the following 
additional accessory structures already on the property: 

 Existing Shed:  348 square feet 

 Existing Garage:  650 square feet 

 Horse Shelter:  188 square feet 

 Silo:  113 square feet 

With the existing structures, the total area of accessory structures would be approximately 
2,211 square feet. 

The City Engineer has also reviewed the plans and has no comments. 

Recommendation 

The City Planner recommends that the Conditional Use Permit be approved, subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. A building permit and certificate of occupancy shall be obtained. 

2. The building shall be built in substantial conformance with the survey prepared by 
Webb Surveying, LLC dated April 29, 2020. 

3. The property shall remain in substantial conformance with all performance 
standards contained within the City Zoning Ordinance and City Code. 

































   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 

Memorandum 
Meeting Date: June 17, 2020 

To:   Planning Commission 

From:    Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE:  Conditional Use Permit for an Accessory Building– 
11652 Crow Hassan Park Road 

Overview of Request  

The subject property is currently zoned Agriculture.  The property is located at 11652 Crow 
Hassan Park Road. 

The application is included in your packets and contains their proposed request. 

Evaluation of Request 

The floor area of the principal structure is approximately 1674 square feet based on a recent 
building permit for renovation of the home.  The building area of the proposed new accessory 
building is 2,400 square feet.  The zoning ordinance allows for an accessory building in 
excess of the floor area of the principal building if a Conditional Use Permit is obtained.  The 
existing accessory building on the property will be removed.    

The City Engineer has also reviewed the plans and has no comments. 

Recommendation 

The City Planner recommends that the Conditional Use Permit be approved, subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. A building permit and certificate of occupancy shall be obtained. 

2. The building shall be built in substantial conformance with the survey prepared by 
Otto Associates dated May 6, 2020. 

3. The property shall remain in substantial conformance with all performance 
standards contained within the City Zoning Ordinance and City Code. 











1
5

'-6
"

1'-0"

1'-0"

1
2

'-1
7 8

"

4

12

D
IS

C
L

A
IM

E
R

 O
F 

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
IE

S
Fo

le
y 

Lu
m

be
r

 D
o 

it 
C

en
te

r
C

O
N
TR

A
C

TO
R
:

H
O

M
EO

W
N
ER

: 
B
R
A
N
D

O
N
 B

ER
N
IN

G
5

/4
/2

0

D
ES

IG
N
ED

 &
 D

R
A
W

N
B
Y:

 M
A
TT

 A
N
D

ER
S
O

N

O
ff

ic
e:

 (3
20

) 9
68

-6
29

1
Fa

x:
 (3

20
) 9

68
-9

93
6

PL
A

N
S 

FU
R

N
IS

H
ED

 B
Y

 F
O

LE
Y

 L
U

M
B

ER
 W

ER
E 

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 B

Y
 D

R
A

FT
SP

ER
SO

N
 W

H
O

 A
R

E
N

O
T 

R
EG

IS
TE

R
ED

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
 O

R
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
S.

 F
O

LE
Y

 L
U

M
B

ER
D

IS
C

LA
IM

S 
A

N
Y

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
Y

 W
H

A
TS

O
EV

ER
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y
 E

R
R

O
R

S 
O

F 
A

N
Y

 K
IN

D
 T

H
A

T 
M

A
Y

 B
E

FO
U

N
D

 O
N

 A
N

Y
 P

LA
N

S.
 A

N
Y

 P
LA

N
S 

FU
R

N
IS

H
ED

 B
Y

 F
O

LE
Y

 L
U

M
B

ER
 A

R
E 

W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
A

R
R

A
N

TY
. R

EL
IA

N
C

E 
O

F 
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

A
R

E 
TH

E 
SO

LE
 R

ES
PO

N
SI

B
IL

IT
Y

 O
F 

TH
E

H
O

M
E 

O
W

N
ER

, C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

, A
N

D
/O

R
 U

SE
R

 O
F 

TH
ES

E 
PL

A
N

S.

A
C

C
O

U
N
T 

M
A
N
A
G

ER
:

C
H
A
D

 M
A
TV

IC
K

A-1SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

FRONT RIGHT

REAR LEFT



12

2X4 ROOF PURLINS 18" O.C.

29 GA STEEL

TRUSSES # 42-5-5
7'-6" O.C.

2X8 TOP PLATE

TREATED 2X10

BASE MOLDING

2X4 WALL PURLINS
 2'0" O.C.

29 GA. STEEL

1'-0"

5
'-0

"

SOFFIT STARTER

STEEL SOFFIT
PANEL

4

6
"

AS PER BUILDING INSPECTOR

2X6 TOP PLATE

1
4
'-6

"

3 PLY 2X6 NAIL LAM POST 7'-6" O.C.

2X6 WIND BRACE

1
5
'-6

"

30

2x10 ROOF JOIST
7'-6" O.C.

4836

4
8

3
6

4
8

3
6

4836

4
8

3
6

7
'-6

"
7

'-6
"

7
'-6

"
7

'-6
"

7
'-6

"
7

'-6
"

7
'-6

"
7

'-6
"

6
0

'-0
"

8'-0"8'-0"8'-0"8'-0"8'-0"

40'-0"

6
'-6

"
1

7
'-0

"
6

'-6
"

7
'-6

"
7

'-6
"

7
'-6

"
7

'-6
"

3
0

'-0
"

3
0

'-0
"

6
0

'-0
"

10'-0" 4'-9" 4'-9" 21'-0" 4'-9" 4'-9"

50'-0"

21'X13'-6"

17'X12'

4/12 PITCH TRUSEES 7'-6" O.C.

14'-6" CEILING
15'-6" SIDE WALLS

2 PLY 11 78" LVL

3
 P

LY
 1

8
" L

V
L

D
IS

C
L

A
IM

E
R

 O
F 

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
IE

S
Fo

le
y 

Lu
m

be
r

 D
o 

it 
C

en
te

r
C

O
N
TR

A
C

TO
R
:

H
O

M
EO

W
N
ER

: 
B
R
A
N
D

O
N
 B

ER
N
IN

G
5

/4
/2

0

D
ES

IG
N
ED

 &
 D

R
A
W

N
B
Y:

 M
A
TT

 A
N
D

ER
S
O

N

O
ff

ic
e:

 (3
20

) 9
68

-6
29

1
Fa

x:
 (3

20
) 9

68
-9

93
6

PL
A

N
S 

FU
R

N
IS

H
ED

 B
Y

 F
O

LE
Y

 L
U

M
B

ER
 W

ER
E 

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 B

Y
 D

R
A

FT
SP

ER
SO

N
 W

H
O

 A
R

E
N

O
T 

R
EG

IS
TE

R
ED

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
 O

R
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
S.

 F
O

LE
Y

 L
U

M
B

ER
D

IS
C

LA
IM

S 
A

N
Y

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
Y

 W
H

A
TS

O
EV

ER
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y
 E

R
R

O
R

S 
O

F 
A

N
Y

 K
IN

D
 T

H
A

T 
M

A
Y

 B
E

FO
U

N
D

 O
N

 A
N

Y
 P

LA
N

S.
 A

N
Y

 P
LA

N
S 

FU
R

N
IS

H
ED

 B
Y

 F
O

LE
Y

 L
U

M
B

ER
 A

R
E 

W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
A

R
R

A
N

TY
. R

EL
IA

N
C

E 
O

F 
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

A
R

E 
TH

E 
SO

LE
 R

ES
PO

N
SI

B
IL

IT
Y

 O
F 

TH
E

H
O

M
E 

O
W

N
ER

, C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

, A
N

D
/O

R
 U

SE
R

 O
F 

TH
ES

E 
PL

A
N

S.

A
C

C
O

U
N
T 

M
A
N
A
G

ER
:

C
H
A
D

 M
A
TV

IC
K

A-2SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"







 

 
PO Box 251, Medina, MN  55340    1 
763‐473‐0569 
 

Collaborative Planning, LLC 

 

Memorandum 

To:   Planning Commission 
From:   Cindy Nash, AICP, EDFP 
Date:  June 18, 2020 
Subject: 10111 Beebe Lake Road  - variance 

 

The City has received a variance application for review and consideration.   

Overview of Request  

The subject property is adjacent to Beebe Lake Road.  A variance request is being made to 
permit the construction of a garden shed to the front of the home, near the garden.   The 
proposed shed would be 10 feet by 12 feet and tucked into the woods.    

Evaluation of Request 

In evaluating variance requests, the following questions 
should be considered:  
 
1. Is the request a reasonable use of the land?  A small 
garden shed may be a reasonable use of the land in this 
area to provide access between the garden and the 
shed. 
 
2. Is the plight of the landowner due to circumstances 
unique to the property not created by the landowner?  
Staff Note:  The situation is created by the landowner.  
The lot is an existing lot of record.  The encroachment is 
the minimal amount needed to accommodate a home 
on the property.   
 

3. Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality?  
Staff Note:  The variance will not alter the essential character of the 
locality.  The shed is small and would be tucked into the woods.  It also 
has architectural detailing to make the shed interesting.   



 

 
PO Box 251, Medina, MN  55340    2 
763‐473‐0569 
 

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the variance with the following conditions: 

1. The garden shed shall be constructed in substantial conformance with the Site Plan 
prepared by Meyer-Rohlin. and dated May 20, 2020.  

2. The garden shed shall be located not less than 15 feet from the property line. 

3. The architecture of the garden shed shall be in substantial conformance with the 
architecture submitted with the variance application. 

 

 

 

 

   



















 

 
PO Box 251, Medina, MN  55340    1 
763‐473‐0569 
 

Collaborative Planning, LLC 

 

Memorandum 

To:   Planning Commission 
From:   Cindy Nash, AICP, EDFP 
Date:  June 18, 2020 
Subject: 775 Kadler  - variance 

 

The City has received a variance application for review and consideration.   

Overview of Request  

The subject property is in the Crow 
River Heights neighborhood, and is 
located on a lot that is nearly 
rectangular shaped but not 
completely rectangular.  A variance 
request is being made to permit the 
construction of a screen porch and 
deck on the rear of the home.   The 
proposed screen porch would be 16 
feet by 16 feet, the deck would be 
16 feet by 10 feet, and a staircase 
would lead off the screen porch to 
the ground.    

The lot contains approximately 
10,576 square feet and is approximately 79 feet wide at the front of the lot (shortest width) 
and 126 feet long on shortest depth. Regardless of the variation in depth, the minimum 126 
feet deep is sufficient to meet a 30-foot front yard setback, 30-foot rear yard setback, and still 
have 66 feet depth for a home.  The original home builder placed a home with a front-
protruding garage that used up 59.8 feet of depth, plus added a cantilevered screen door 
which leaves little room for a deck on the home.  The front of the garage is set at 30.5 feet 
from the front property line, while the porch/door are setback back approximately 64.1 feet 
from the front property line. 



 

 
PO Box 251, Medina, MN  55340    2 
763‐473‐0569 
 

The property owners are requesting to construct a screen porch and deck on the back side of 
the home that is 21.2 feet from the rear property line.  Hanover’s ordinance requires a 30-foot 
rear-yard setback.  It is not, however, uncommon to see setbacks of 20 or 25 feet in other 
communities on single-family lots when they can be accomplished in a manner that does not 
impact a drainage easement.   

The home to the south has less depth, while the home to the north has more depth.  The 
subject property backs onto an undeveloped property that has an apparent pond directly 
behind their home.  The home to the south backs up on another home/lot, and had a deck 
that is 14 feet deep added in 2010.  That deck also does not appear to meet rear yard setback 
requirements, but while it received a building permit there is no evidence that a variance was 
processed. 

The City Engineer has reviewed the plans and has no comments. 

Evaluation of Request 

In evaluating variance requests, the following questions should be considered:  
 

1. Is the request a reasonable use of the land?  Staff note:  It is typical to expect 
to be able to construct a deck.  The Planning Commission could discuss what 
is a reasonable size and how to address a screen porch. 

 
2. Is the plight of the landowner due to circumstances unique to the property not 

created by the landowner?  
Staff Note:  The situation is created by a former landowner.  The situation 
is not unique to the property as there are many properties of a similar size 
in Hanover.   
 

3. Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality?  
Staff Note:  The variance will not alter the essential character of the 
locality.  It would be similar in depth to the neighboring deck.   

 

Recommendation 

The Planning Commission should discuss the situation and the questions that are used when 
evaluating variances and make findings and a recommendation. 

 

 

 

   



























   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 

Memorandum 
Date: June 17, 2020 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Cindy Nash, AICP EDFP 

RE: Potential changes to Zoning Ordinance to allow Solar Energy Systems 

Hanover’s Zoning Ordinance does not currently permit any types of solar energy 
systems, either as accessory or principal uses.   

The resident at 1027 Emerald approached the City Council and asked if the City 
would consider amending the Zoning Ordinance to permit solar energy systems.  The 
City Council referred this to the Planning Commission. 

Included in the packet is sample language for consideration.  Please note that the only 
type being considered in this sample language would be for an accessory structure 
related to an existing principal use.  No solar farms are included in this sample 
language for review.  

At the meeting, we will review the sample language and then the Planning 
Commission can provide suggestions or thoughts as to how to proceed. 



1 
 

 
Hanover Planning Commission – Ideas for Discussion 
Solar Energy 
Meeting date of June 22, 2020 
 
 
Potential Definitions 
 

Building‐integrated Solar Energy System.  “Building‐integrated Solar Energy System” 
shall mean a Solar Energy System that is an integral part of a principal or accessory 
building, rather than a separate mechanical device, replacing or substituting for an 
architectural or structural component of the building.  Building‐integrated systems 
include but are not limited to photovoltaic or hot water systems that are contained 
within roofing materials, windows, walls, skylights, and awnings. 
 
Building‐mounted Solar Energy System.  “Building‐mounted Solar Energy System” shall 
mean a Solar Energy System affixed to a principal or accessory building. 
 
Community Solar Energy System (also called a “Solar Garden”).  “Community Solar 
Energy System” shall mean a solar‐electric (photovoltaic) array that provides retail 
electric power (or a financial proxy for retail power) to multiple community members or 
businesses residing or located off‐site from the location of the solar energy system, 
under the provisions of Minn. Statutes 216B.1641 or successor statute.   
 
Ground‐mounted Solar Energy System.  “Ground‐mounted Solar Energy System” shall 
mean a Solar Energy System affixed to the ground. 
 
Solar  Energy  System.  “Solar  Energy  System”  shall mean  a  complete  design  or 
assembly consisting of a solar energy collector, an energy storage facility (where 
used), and components to the distribution of transformed energy (to the extent 
they cannot be used jointly with a conventional energy system).   
 

    
 

  SECTION ______ 
SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS 

 

Subdivision 
 
xx.xx  Building‐Integrated and Building‐Mounted Solar Energy Systems 
xx.xx  Ground‐Mounted Solar Energy Systems 
xx.xx  Roof‐Mounted Community Solar Energy Systems 
xx.xx   Ground‐Mounted Community Solar Energy Systems 

 
 

Commented [CN1]: Won’t include……only included here 
to show difference between these types of systems for 
discussion purposes. 

Commented [CN2]: Won’t use. 



2 
 

xx.xx  BUILDING‐INTEGRATED AND BUILDING‐MOUNTED SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS.  In 
those  districts  that  permit  building‐integrated  solar  energy  systems  as  an 
accessory use,  the solar energy system shall be  installed  in a manner  that  is  in 
compliance  with  all  terms  of  this  Ordinance  including  height  and  setback 
restrictions  of  the  zoning  district  in  which  it  is  proposed  to  be  located. 
Notwithstanding  the height  limitations of  the zoning district, Building‐mounted 
Solar Energy Systems shall not extend higher than three (3) feet above the ridge 
level of a roof on a structure with a gable, hip or gambrel roof and shall not extend 
higher  than  ten  (10)  feet at maximum  tilt above  the  surface of  the  roof when 
installed on a flat or shed roof if the solar energy system is visible from a public 
right‐of‐way.  All solar energy systems shall meet the standards of the Minnesota 
Building Code, and a building permit shall be received prior to installation. 

 
xx.xx  GROUND‐MOUNTED SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS.  In those districts that permit 

ground‐mounted solar energy systems as an accessory use, the ground‐mounted 
solar energy system shall be installed in compliance with the following 
requirements: 
A. Parcel Size.  When permitted as an accessory use in any Residential District, 

ground‐mounted solar energy systems may only be permitted on parcels of 
not less than five (5) gross acres.  There is no parcel size limitation in other 
districts. 

B. Size.  Ground mounted solar energy systems are considered accessory 
structures. The size of the system based on the square feet of the solar 
panels will be calculated as part of the maximum combined number and size 
of accessory structures allowed by lot size. 

C. Setbacks.  Ground‐mounted solar energy systems including any appurtenant 
equipment shall comply with the accessory structure setback requirement 
and placement limitations for the district in which it is installed when 
oriented in any position.  Ground‐mounted solar energy systems are not 
permitted in front or side yards.  

D. Height.  The height of ground‐mounted solar energy systems shall not exceed 
ten (10) feet in height when oriented at maximum tilt. 

E. Glare.  The panels of ground‐mounted solar energy systems shall be placed 
and arranged such that reflected solar radiation or glare shall not be directed 
onto roadways or residential buildings.  Prior to the issuance of a permit for a 
ground‐mounted solar energy system, the permit applicant must provide an 
analysis or technical documentation from the manufacturer of the ground‐
mounted solar energy system demonstrating that the ground‐mounted 
system will not impact roadways or residential buildings due to glare. 

F. Feeder lines.  The electrical collection system shall be placed underground 
within the interior of each property. 

G. Easements.  The solar energy system shall not encroach on public easements. 
H. Utility Notification.  No grid inter‐tie solar energy system shall be installed 

until evidence has been given to the city that the owner has submitted 
notification t the utility company of the customer’s intent to install an 

Commented [CN3]: Different size? 
 



3 
 

interconnected customer‐owned solar energy system. Off‐grid systems are 
exempt from this requirement. 

I. Abandonment.  If the solar energy system remains nonfunctional or 
inoperative for a continuous period of 12 months, the system shall be 
deemed abandoned and shall constitute a public nuisance. The owner shall 
remove the abandoned system at their expense within 90 days. Removal 
includes the entire structure including transmission equipment, structures 
and foundations, and the restoration of soil and vegetation. 

 
 
 
Use Chart 

 
   Building‐

Integrated 
Ground‐
Mounted 

Roof‐top 
Community 

Ground‐
Mounted 
Community  

AG  A  A      

RR  A  A      

SFR  A         

MFR  A         

B‐1  A         

B‐2  A         

I  A         

Inst  A  A       

Parks  A  A       

Public  A  A       

 
 


	06-22-20  Agenda
	CHAIR           BOARD MEMBERS
	STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL
	MICHAEL CHRISTENSON
	COUNCIL LIAISON     DEAN KUITUNEN
	DOUG HAMMERSENG     GRETCHEN BARRETT


	05-21-20 Draft Minutes
	City Planner memo 11000 Crow Hassan
	Slavec application
	Crow Hassan Shed
	20026-Slavec-CERT SHEET 1 -4-7-2020
	20026-Slavec-CERT SHEET 2 -4-7-2020
	City Planner memo 11652 Crow Hassan
	Berning application
	11652 CHP Shed Plan 1st sheet
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	11652 CHP Shed Plan 2nd sheet
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	PAINT-SHEET-FRONT
	11652 Crow Hassan survey
	Comment Memo Council 10111 Beebe Lake Road
	Bolte application
	Bolte shed plans
	Bolte survey
	Comment Memo Council 775  Kadler
	775 Kadler application
	775 Kadler plans
	775 Kadler survey
	memo solar June2020
	info for discussion

